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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q
(Mark One)

þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 29, 2007
or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                                to
Commission file number 0-23354

FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Singapore Not Applicable
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

One Marina Boulevard, #28-00 018989
Singapore (Zip Code)

(Address of registrant�s principal executive offices)
Registrant�s telephone number, including area code

(65) 6890 7188
     Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ No o
     Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of �accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer þ       Accelerated filer o       Non-accelerated filer o
     Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes o No þ
     As of August 3, 2007, there were 609,297,816 shares of the Registrant�s ordinary shares outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Flextronics International Ltd.
Singapore
     We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of Flextronics International Ltd. and
subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of June 29, 2007, and the related condensed consolidated statements of operations and
cash flows for the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006. These interim financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company�s management.
     We conducted our reviews in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.
     Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to such condensed
consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.
     We have previously audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of March 31, 2007 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders� equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and in our
report dated May 25, 2007, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and
included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company�s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated
balance sheet from which it has been derived.
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Jose, California
August 8, 2007
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FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of As of
June 29, 2007 March 31, 2007

(In thousands,
except share amounts)

(Unaudited)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 769,952 $ 714,525
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $17,174 and
$17,074 as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively 1,936,524 1,754,705
Inventories 2,514,877 2,562,303
Deferred income taxes 11,453 11,105
Other current assets 672,930 548,409

Total current assets 5,905,736 5,591,047
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,487,865
and
$1,429,142 as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively 2,008,657 1,998,706
Deferred income taxes 660,591 669,898
Goodwill 3,063,890 3,076,400
Other intangible assets, net 218,873 187,920
Other assets 852,343 817,403

Total assets $  12,710,090 $  12,341,374

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Bank borrowings, current portion of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations $ 5,960 $ 8,385
Accounts payable 3,684,001 3,440,845
Accrued payroll 226,660 215,593
Other current liabilities 778,086 823,245

Total current liabilities 4,694,707 4,488,068
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion 1,483,059 1,493,805
Other liabilities 234,386 182,842
Commitments and contingencies (Note K)
Shareholders� equity
Ordinary shares, no par value; 608,793,802 and 607,544,548 shares issued
and
outstanding as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively 5,935,650 5,923,799
Retained earnings 374,147 267,200
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (11,859) (14,340)

Total shareholders� equity 6,297,938 6,176,659
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Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $  12,710,090 $  12,341,374

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three-Month Periods Ended
June 29, 2007 June 30, 2006
(In thousands, except per share

amounts)
(Unaudited)

Net sales $  5,157,026 $  4,059,143
Cost of sales (including $999 and $620 of stock-based compensation
expense for the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June
30, 2006, respectively) 4,866,454 3,823,147
Restructuring charges 9,753 �

Gross profit 280,819 235,996
Selling, general and administrative expenses (including $7,726 and
$6,440 of stock-based compensation expense for the three-month
periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively) 146,588 119,135
Intangible amortization 16,675 7,228
Restructuring charges 921 �
Other income, net (9,309) �
Interest and other expense, net 15,568 29,200

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 110,376 80,433
Provision for income taxes 3,429 4,746

Income from continuing operations $ 106,947 $ 75,687
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax � 8,816

Net income $ 106,947 $ 84,503

Earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations:
Basic $ 0.18 $ 0.13

Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.13

Income from discontinued operations:
Basic $ � $ 0.02

Diluted $ � $ 0.02

Net income:
Basic $ 0.18 $ 0.15

Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.14
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Weighted-average shares used in computing per share amounts:
Basic 608,484 578,466

Diluted 615,541 586,005

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three-Month Periods Ended
June 29, 2007 June 30, 2006

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 106,947 $ 84,503
Depreciation and amortization charges 87,749 81,101
Changes in working capital and other, net of effect of acquisitions (50,091) (263,480)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 144,605 (97,876)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment, net of dispositions (71,889) (82,480)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (2) (90,863)
Proceeds from divestitures of operations 5,490 �
Other investments and notes receivable, net (25,425) 5,738

Net cash used in investing activities (91,826) (167,605)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bank borrowings and long-term debt 1,385,437 1,889,138
Repayments of bank borrowings, long-term debt and capital lease
obligations (1,390,686) (1,676,429)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 3,009 3,008

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,240) 215,717

Effect of exchange rates on cash 4,888 (7,386)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 55,427 (57,150)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 714,525 942,859

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 769,952 $ 885,709

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of businesses financed with seller notes $ � $ 152,870

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE A � ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY
     Flextronics International Ltd. (�Flextronics� or the �Company�) was incorporated in the Republic of Singapore in
May 1990. The Company is a leading provider of advanced design and electronics manufacturing services (�EMS�) to
original equipment manufacturers (�OEMs�) of a broad range of products in the following markets: computing; mobile
communications; consumer digital; telecommunications infrastructure; industrial, semiconductor and white goods;
automotive, marine and aerospace; and medical devices. The Company�s strategy is to provide customers with a full
range of vertically-integrated global supply chain services through which the Company designs, builds and ships a
complete packaged product for its OEM customers. OEM customers leverage the Company�s services to meet their
product requirements throughout the entire product life cycle. The Company also provides after-market services such
as logistics, repair and warranty services.
     The Company�s service offerings include rigid printed circuit board and flexible circuit fabrication, systems
assembly and manufacturing (including enclosures, testing services, materials procurement and inventory
management), logistics, after-sales services (including product repair, re-manufacturing and maintenance) and
multiple component product offerings. Additionally, the Company provides market-specific design and engineering
services ranging from contract design services (�CDM�), where the customer purchases services on a time and materials
basis, to original product design and manufacturing services, where the customer purchases a product that was
designed, developed and manufactured by the Company (commonly referred to as original design manufacturing, or
�ODM�). ODM products are then sold by the Company�s OEM customers under the OEMs� brand names. The Company�s
CDM and ODM services include user interface and industrial design, mechanical engineering and tooling design,
electronic system design and printed circuit board design.
     In September 2006, the Company completed the sale of its Software Development and Solutions business to an
affiliate of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. (�KKR�). The results of operations for the Software Development and
Solutions business are included in discontinued operations in the condensed consolidated financial statements. Refer
to Note M, �Discontinued Operations� for further details.
     On June 4, 2007, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Solectron Corporation (�Solectron�) in
a cash and stock transaction preliminarily valued at $3.7 billion, including estimated transaction related costs. Refer to
the discussion of the Company�s definitive agreement with Solectron in Note L, �Acquisitions and Divestitures.�
NOTE B � SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

     The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP� or �GAAP�) for interim financial
information and in accordance with the requirements of Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not
include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements, and should be
read in conjunction with the Company�s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007 contained in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been
included. Operating results for the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.
     The Company�s fiscal fourth quarter and year ends on March 31 of each year. The first and second fiscal quarters
end on the Friday closest to the last day of each respective calendar quarter. The third fiscal quarter ends on
December 31.
     Amounts included in the condensed consolidated financial statements are expressed in U.S. dollars unless
otherwise designated.

7
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     The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Flextronics and
its majority-owned subsidiaries, after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. The Company
consolidates all majority-owned subsidiaries and investments in entities in which the Company has a controlling
interest. For consolidated majority-owned subsidiaries in which the Company owns less than 100%, the Company
recognizes a minority interest for the ownership interest of the minority owner. As of June 29, 2007 and March 31,
2007, minority interest was not material. The associated minority owners� interest in the income or losses of these
companies has not been material to the Company�s results of operations for the three-month periods ended June 29,
2007 and June 30, 2006, and has been classified, as applicable, within income from discontinued operations or as
interest and other expense, net, in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.
 Use of Estimates

     The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, allowances for doubtful accounts,
inventory write-downs, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets, useful lives of property, equipment and intangible
assets, asset impairments, fair values of derivative instruments and the related hedged items, restructuring charges,
contingencies, capital leases, and the fair values of options granted under the Company�s stock-based compensation
plans. Actual results may differ from previously estimated amounts, and such differences may be material to the
condensed consolidated financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of
revisions are reflected in the period they occur.
 Translation of Foreign Currencies

     The financial position and results of operations for certain of the Company�s subsidiaries are measured using a
currency other than the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities for these
subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the current exchange rates as of the respective balance sheet date.
Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Cumulative
gains and losses from the translation of these subsidiaries� financial statements are reported as a separate component of
shareholders� equity. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity involved, and remeasurement adjustments for foreign operations where the U.S.
dollar is the functional currency, are included in operating results.
 Revenue Recognition

     The Company recognizes manufacturing revenue when it ships goods or the goods are received by its customer,
title and risk of ownership have passed, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and recoverability is reasonably
assured. Generally, there are no formal customer acceptance requirements or further obligations related to
manufacturing services. If such requirements or obligations exist, then the Company recognizes the related revenues at
the time when such requirements are completed and the obligations are fulfilled. The Company makes provisions for
estimated sales returns and other adjustments at the time revenue is recognized based upon contractual terms and an
analysis of historical returns. These provisions were not material to the condensed consolidated financial statements
for the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006.
     The Company provides services for its customers that range from contract design to original product design to
repair services. The Company recognizes service revenue when the services have been performed and the related costs
are expensed as incurred. Net sales for services from continuing operations were less than 10% of the Company�s total
sales from continuing operations during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, and
accordingly, are included in net sales in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.
 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

     The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition and makes provisions for
doubtful accounts based on the outcome of those credit evaluations. The Company evaluates the collectibility of its
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accounts receivable based on specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with
collections and the age of past due receivables. Unanticipated changes in the liquidity or financial position of the
Company�s customers may require additional provisions for doubtful accounts.
 Inventories

     Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out basis) or market value. The stated cost is
comprised of direct materials, labor and overhead. The components of inventories, net of applicable lower of cost or
market write-downs, were as follows:

As of As of
June 29, 2007 March 31, 2007

(In thousands)
Raw materials $1,390,010 $ 1,338,613
Work-in-progress 528,348 602,629
Finished goods 596,519 621,061

$2,514,877 $ 2,562,303

 Property and Equipment
     Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets (three to thirty years), with the exception of building leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the term of the lease, if shorter.
     The Company reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of property and equipment is
measured by comparing its carrying amount to the projected undiscounted cash flows the property and equipment are
expected to generate. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair
value.
 Deferred Income Taxes

     The Company provides for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method of accounting for
income taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities by applying the applicable
statutory tax rate to such differences.
 Purchase Accounting

     The Company has actively pursued business and asset acquisitions, which are accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. The fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses are included
in the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. Under the purchase
method of accounting, the Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and results of operations during the reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among
other things, the fair value of acquired net operating assets, property and equipment, intangible assets and related
deferred tax liabilities, useful lives of plant and equipment and amortizable lives for acquired intangible assets. Any
excess of the purchase consideration over the identified fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired is recognized as
goodwill. Additionally, the Company may be required to recognize liabilities for anticipated restructuring costs that
will be necessary due to the elimination of excess capacity, redundant assets or unnecessary functions.
     The Company estimates the preliminary fair value of acquired assets and liabilities as of the date of acquisition
based on information available at that time and other estimates that management believes are reasonable. The
valuation of these tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities is subject to further management review
and may change materially between the preliminary allocation and end of the purchase price allocation period. Any
changes in these estimates may have a material impact on the Company�s condensed consolidated operating results or
financial condition.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles
     Goodwill of the Company�s reporting units is tested for impairment each year as of January 31st and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. Goodwill is
tested for impairment at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit�s carrying amount, including goodwill,
to the fair value of the reporting unit. Reporting units represent components of the Company for which discrete
financial information is available that is regularly reviewed by management. For purposes of the annual goodwill
impairment evaluation, as of January 31, 2007 the Company had a single reporting unit: Electronics Manufacturing
Services. If the carrying amount of this reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the amount of impairment loss
recognized, if any, is measured using a discounted cash flow analysis. Further, to the extent the carrying amount of the
Company as a whole is greater than its market capitalization, all, or a significant portion of its goodwill may be
considered impaired.
     The following table summarizes the activity in the Company�s goodwill account during the three-month period
ended June 29, 2007:

Amount
(In thousands)

Balance, beginning of the year $ 3,076,400
Purchase accounting adjustments (1) (16,831)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 4,321

Balance, end of the year $ 3,063,890

(1) Includes
adjustments and
reclassifications
resulting from
management�s
final review of
the valuation of
tangible and
identifiable
intangible assets
and liabilities
acquired through
certain business
combinations
completed in a
period
subsequent to
the respective
period of
acquisition,
based on
management�s
estimates, of
which
approximately
$11.9 million
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was attributable
to the Company�s
November 2006
acquisition of
International
DisplayWorks,
Inc. (�IDW�). The
remaining
amount was
primarily
attributable to
other immaterial
purchase
accounting
adjustments and
divestitures that
were not
individually
significant to the
Company. Refer
to the discussion
of the
Company�s
acquisitions in
Note L,
�Acquisitions and
Divestitures.�

     The Company�s acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization over their estimated useful lives and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
intangible may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an intangible asset
exceeds its fair value. Intangible assets are comprised of customer-related intangibles, which primarily include
contractual agreements and customer relationships; and licenses and other intangibles, which is primarily comprised
of licenses and also includes patents and trademarks, and developed technologies. Customer-related intangibles are
amortized on a straight-line basis generally over a period of up to eight years, and licenses and other intangibles over a
period of up to five years. No residual value is estimated for any intangible assets. During the three-month period
ended June 29, 2007, there were approximately $42.0 million of additions to intangible assets related to
customer-related intangibles and approximately $5.1 million related to acquired licenses. The fair value of the
Company�s intangible assets purchased through business combinations is principally determined based on
management�s estimates of cash flow and recoverability. The Company is in the process of determining the fair value
of intangible assets acquired in certain historical business combinations. Such valuations will be completed within one
year of purchase. The components of acquired intangible assets are as follows:

As of June 29, 2007 As of March 31, 2007
Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

(In thousands)
(In

thousands)
Intangible assets:
Customer-related $ 273,938 $ (103,514) $ 170,424 $ 211,196 $ (69,000) $ 142,196
Licenses and other 59,263 (10,814) 48,449 74,864 (29,140) 45,724
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Total $ 333,201 $ (114,328) $ 218,873 $ 286,060 $ (98,140) $ 187,920
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     Total intangible amortization expense recognized from continuing operations was $16.7 million and $7.2 million
during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively. The estimated future annual
amortization expense for acquired intangible assets is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending March 31, Amount
(In

thousands)
2008 (1) $ 35,730
2009 44,316
2010 42,036
2011 36,635
2012 27,280
Thereafter 32,876

Total amortization expense $218,873

(1) Represents
estimated
amortization for
the nine-month
period ending
March 31, 2008.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
     All derivative instruments are recognized on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at fair value. If the
derivative instrument is designated as a cash flow hedge, effectiveness is measured quarterly based on a regression of
the spot rates for the notional currency pairs underlying the derivative instrument for the prior 30 month period. The
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument, excluding changes in fair value attributable
to time value, is recognized in shareholders� equity as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive
income and recognized in the condensed consolidated statement of operations when the hedged item affects earnings.
Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges, together with changes in fair value attributable to
time value, are recognized in earnings immediately. If the derivative instrument is designated as a fair value hedge, the
changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognized in earnings in the current period.
Other Assets

     The Company has certain investments in, and notes receivable from, non-publicly traded companies, which are
included within other assets in the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheets. Non-majority-owned
investments are accounted for using the equity method when the Company has an ownership percentage equal to or
greater than 20%, or has the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of the issuer; otherwise, the cost
method is used. The Company monitors these investments for impairment and makes appropriate reductions in
carrying values as required.
     As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company�s investments in non-majority owned companies totaled
$246.5 million and $250.5 million, respectively, of which $119.0 million and $122.9 million, respectively, were
accounted for using the equity method. The associated equity in the earnings or losses of these equity method
investments has not been material to the Company�s condensed consolidated results of operations for the three-month
periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, and has been classified as a component of interest and other expense,
net in the condensed consolidated statement of operations. As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, notes receivable
from these non-majority owned investments totaled $353.9 million and $343.9 million, respectively, of which
$123.9 million and $121.7 million, respectively, was due from an investment accounted for using the equity method.
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     Other assets also include the Company�s own investment participation in its trade receivables securitization
program as further discussed in Note H, �Trade Receivables Securitization.�
Restructuring Charges

     The Company recognizes restructuring charges related to its plans to close or consolidate duplicate manufacturing
and administrative facilities. In connection with these activities, the Company records restructuring charges for
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employee termination costs, long-lived asset impairment and other exit-related costs.
     The recognition of restructuring charges requires the Company to make certain judgments and estimates regarding
the nature, timing and amount of costs associated with the planned exit activity. To the extent the Company�s actual
results differ from its estimates and assumptions, the Company may be required to revise the estimates of future
liabilities, requiring the recognition of additional restructuring charges or the reduction of liabilities already
recognized. Such changes to previously estimated amounts may be material to the condensed consolidated financial
statements. At the end of each reporting period, the Company evaluates the remaining accrued balances to ensure that
no excess accruals are retained and the utilization of the provisions are for their intended purpose in accordance with
developed exit plans.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

     In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 156, �Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets� (�SFAS 156�),
which amends SFAS 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities.� SFAS 156 requires recognition of a servicing asset or liability at fair value each time an obligation is
undertaken to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract. SFAS 156 also provides guidance on
subsequent measurement methods for each class of servicing assets and liabilities and specifies financial statement
presentation and disclosure requirements. SFAS 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006
and was adopted by the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008. The adoption of SFAS 156 did not have a
material impact on the Company�s condensed consolidated results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
     In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes� (�FIN 48�) as an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes� (�SFAS 109�). This Interpretation clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition of tax benefits previously recognized and
additional disclosures for unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties. The evaluation of a tax position in
accordance with this Interpretation begins with a determination as to whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax
position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement for recognition in the financial statements. FIN 48 is
effective no later than fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, and was adopted by the Company in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2008.
     The Company did not recognize any adjustments to its liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the
implementation of FIN 48 other than to reclassify $65.0 million from other current liabilities to other liabilities as
required by the Interpretation. As of April 1, 2007 the Company had approximately $66.0 million of unrecognized tax
benefits, substantially all of which, if recognized, would affect its tax expense. The Company�s unrecognized tax
benefits are subject to change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the expiration of certain statutes of
limitations. Although the amount of these adjustments cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, the Company is not
currently aware of any material impact on its condensed consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
     The Company and its subsidiaries file federal, state and local income tax returns in multiple jurisdictions around
the world. With a few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2000.
     The Company has elected to include estimated interest and penalties on its tax liabilities as a component of tax
expense. Estimated interest and penalties recognized in the condensed consolidated balance sheet and condensed
consolidated statement of operations were not significant.
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NOTE C � STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
     Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 (Revised
2004), �Share-Based Payment,� (�SFAS 123(R)�) under the modified prospective transition method. As of June 29, 2007,
the Company grants equity compensation awards to acquire the Company�s ordinary shares from three plans, which are
referred to as the Company�s equity compensation plans below. For further discussion of these Plans, refer to Note 2,
�Summary of Accounting Policies,� of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
Determining Fair Value

     The fair value of options granted to employees under the Company�s equity compensation plans during the
three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006 was estimated using the following weighted-average
assumptions:

Three-Month Periods Ended
June 29,

2007 June 30, 2006
Expected term 4.6 years 4.9 years
Expected volatility 35.3  % 40.3  %
Expected dividends 0.0  % 0.0  %
Risk-free interest rate 4.5  % 4.9  %
Weighted-average fair value $ 4.10 $ 4.55

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
     As required by SFAS 123(R), management estimates expected forfeitures and is recognizing compensation costs
only for those equity awards expected to vest. When estimating forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary
termination behavior as well as an analysis of actual option forfeitures.
     During the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, the Company capitalized approximately $604,000 of
stock-based compensation as part of inventory. As of June 29, 2007, the total compensation cost related to unvested
stock options granted to employees under the Company�s equity compensation plans but not yet recognized was
approximately $52.3 million, net of estimated forfeitures of $3.9 million. This cost will be amortized on a straight-line
basis over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.3 years, and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in
estimated forfeitures. As of June 29, 2007, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share bonus
awards granted to employees under the Company�s equity compensation plans was approximately $49.0 million, net of
estimated forfeitures of approximately $2.3 million. This cost will be amortized generally on a straight-line basis over
a weighted-average period of approximately 3.4 years, and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated
forfeitures.
     In accordance with SFAS 123(R), the cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits (tax benefits related to the
excess of proceeds from employee exercises of stock options over the stock-based compensation cost recognized for
those options) are classified as financing cash flows. During the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, the Company did not recognize any excess tax benefits as a financing cash inflow related to its equity
compensation plans.
Stock-Based Awards Activity

     The following is a summary of option activity for the Company�s equity compensation plan�s, excluding unvested
share bonus awards, during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007:
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Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining

Number of Exercise Contractual Aggregate

Shares Price
Term in
Years Intrinsic Value

Outstanding as of March 31, 2007 51,821,915 $ 11.63
Granted 1,036,300 11.15
Exercised (393,750) 7.64
Forfeited (716,519) 10.70

Outstanding as of June 29, 2007 51,747,946 $ 11.67 6.43 $ 50,493,106

Vested and expected to vest as of June 29, 2007 51,096,063 $ 11.67 6.40 $ 50,406,133

Exercisable as of June 29, 2007 36,838,874 $ 12.12 5.77 $ 40,607,590

     The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised (calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the
underlying award and the price of the Company�s ordinary shares determined as of the time of option exercise) under
the Company�s equity compensation plans was $1.5 million and $2.7 million during the three-month periods ended
June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively.
     Cash received from option exercises under all equity compensation plans was $3.0 million for both the three-month
periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006.
     The following table summarizes share bonus award activity for the Company�s equity compensation plans during
the three-month period ended June 29, 2007:

Weighted
Ave rage

Number of Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value

Unvested share bonus awards as of March 31, 2007 4,332,500 $ 8.11
Granted 2,385,000 11.27
Vested (855,504) 7.20
Forfeited (253,500) 8.41

Unvested share bonus awards as of June 29, 2007 5,608,496 $ 9.58

     Of the 2.4 million unvested share bonus awards granted under the Company�s equity compensation plans during the
three-month period ended June 29, 2007, 1,162,500 were granted to certain key employees whereby vesting is
contingent upon both a service requirement and the Company�s achievement of certain longer-term goals over periods
ranging between three to five years. Management currently believes that achievement of these longer-term goals is
probable. Compensation expense for share bonus awards with both a service and performance condition is being
recognized on a graded attribute basis over the respective requisite contractual or derived service period of the awards.
     The total fair value of shares vested under the Company�s equity compensation plans was $9.5 million and
$138,000 during the three-month periods ending June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively.
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NOTE D � EARNINGS PER SHARE
     Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, �Earnings Per Share� (�SFAS 128�), requires entities to present
both basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share exclude dilution and is calculated by dividing net
income by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the applicable periods.
     Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution from stock options, share bonus awards and convertible
securities. The potential dilution from stock options exercisable into ordinary share equivalents and share bonus
awards was calculated using the treasury stock method based on the average fair market value of the Company�s
ordinary shares for the period. The potential dilution from the conversion spread (excess of conversion value over face
value) of the Subordinated Notes convertible into ordinary share equivalents was calculated as the quotient of the
conversion spread and the average fair market value of the Company�s ordinary shares for the period.
     The following table reflects the basic weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding and diluted weighted-average
ordinary share equivalents used to calculate basic and diluted income per share from continuing operations:

Three-Month Periods Ended
June 29, 2007 June 30, 2006
(In thousands, except per share

amounts)
Basic earnings from continuing operations per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 106,947 $ 75,687 
Shares used in computation:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding 608,484 578,466 

Basic earnings from continuing operations per share $ 0.18 $ 0.13 

Diluted earnings from continuing operations per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 106,947 $ 75,687 
Shares used in computation:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding 608,484 578,466 
Weighted-average ordinary share equivalents from stock options and awards
(1) 5,890 6,683 
Weighted-average ordinary share equivalents from convertible notes (2) 1,167 856 

Weighted-average ordinary shares and ordinary share equivalents outstanding 615,541 586,005 

Diluted earnings from continuing operations per share $ 0.17 $ 0.13 

(1) Ordinary share equivalents from stock options to purchase approximately 38.3 million and
41.5 million shares outstanding during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30,
2006, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share primarily
because the exercise price of these options was greater than the average market price of the
Company�s ordinary shares during the respective periods.

(2) The principal amount of the Company�s Zero Coupon Convertible Junior Subordinated Notes will
be settled in cash, and the conversion spread (excess of conversion value over face value), if any,
will be settled by issuance of shares upon maturity. Approximately 1.2 million and 856,000
ordinary share equivalents from the conversion spread have been included as common stock
equivalents during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively.
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In addition, as the Company has the positive intent and ability to settle the principal amount of its
1% Convertible Subordinated Notes due August 2010 in cash, approximately 32.2 million ordinary
share equivalents related to the principal portion of the Notes are excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings per share. The Company intends to settle any conversion spread (excess of the
conversion value over face value) in stock. During the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007
and June 30, 2006, the conversion obligation was less than the principal portion of the Convertible
Notes and accordingly, no additional shares were included as ordinary share equivalents.
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NOTE E � OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
     The following table summarizes the components of other comprehensive income:

Three-Month Periods Ended
June 29,

2007 June 30, 2006
(In thousands)

Net income $ 106,947 $ 84,503
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 4,142 (14,258)
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments, and other income (loss),
net of taxes (1,655) (8,548)

Comprehensive income $ 109,434 $ 61,697

NOTE F � BANK BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
     On May 10, 2007, the Company entered into a new five-year $2.0 billion credit facility, which expires in
May 2012, which replaced the Company�s $1.35 billion credit facility previously existing as of March 31, 2007. As of
June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding under the $2.0 billion or $1.35 billion credit
facilities. The $2.0 billion credit facility is unsecured, and contains certain covenants that are subject to a number of
significant exceptions and limitations, and also requires that the Company maintain a maximum ratio of total
indebtedness to EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization), and a minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined, during its term. As of June 29, 2007, the Company was in compliance with the
financial covenants under the $2.0 billion credit facility.
     The Company and certain of its subsidiaries also have various uncommitted revolving credit facilities, lines of
credit and term loans in the amount of $543.0 million in the aggregate, under which there were approximately
$5.7 million and $8.1 million of borrowings outstanding as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively. These
credit facilities are unsecured and require the Company maintain a maximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA,
and a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, as defined, during their term. As of June 29, 2007, the Company was in
compliance with the financial covenants under these facilities. The lines of credit and term loans are primarily secured
by accounts receivable.
NOTE G � FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
     Due to their short-term nature, the carrying amount of the Company�s cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximates fair value. The Company�s cash equivalents are comprised of cash
deposited in money market accounts and certificates of deposit. The Company�s investment policy limits the amount of
credit exposure to 20% of the total investment portfolio in any single issuer.
     The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in forecasted sales, cost of sales, and
assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies. The Company has established currency risk
management programs to protect against reductions in value and volatility of future cash flows caused by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company enters into short-term foreign currency forward and swap contracts to
hedge only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and liabilities, primarily accounts receivable and
accounts payable, and cash flows denominated in non-functional currencies. Gains and losses on the Company�s
forward and swap contracts generally offset losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions hedged, and
accordingly, generally do not subject the Company to risk of significant accounting losses. The Company hedges
committed exposures and does not engage in speculative transactions. The credit risk of these forward and swap
contracts is minimized since the contracts are with large financial institutions.
     As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the net fair value of the Company�s short-term foreign currency contracts
was not material. As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the associated deferred losses relating to changes in fair
value of the Company�s foreign currency contracts were also not material, were included as a component of other
comprehensive income, and are expected to be recognized in earnings over the next twelve
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month period. The gains and losses recognized in earnings due to hedge ineffectiveness were not material for the
three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006.
     On November 17, 2004, the Company issued $500.0 million of 6.25% Senior Subordinated Notes due in
November 2014, of which $402.1 million of the original amount issued was outstanding as of June 29, 2007 and
March 31, 2007. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15. The Company also entered into
interest rate swap transactions to effectively convert a portion of the fixed interest rate debt to a variable rate. The
swaps, having notional amounts totaling $400.0 million and which expire in November 2014, are accounted for as fair
value hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, �Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities� (�SFAS 133�). Under the terms of the swaps, the Company pays an interest rate equal to the
six-month LIBOR (estimated as 5.49% at June 29, 2007), set in arrears, plus a fixed spread ranging from 1.37% to
1.52%, and receives a fixed rate of 6.25%. No portion of the swap transaction is treated as ineffective under SFAS
133. As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company recognized approximately $23.4 million and
$13.0 million in other current liabilities, respectively, to reflect the fair value of the interest rate swaps, with a
corresponding decrease to the carrying value of the 6.25% Senior Subordinated Notes.
NOTE H � TRADE RECEIVABLES SECURITIZATION
     The Company continuously sells a designated pool of trade receivables to a third-party qualified special purpose
entity, which in turn sells an undivided ownership interest to a conduit, administered by an unaffiliated financial
institution. In addition to this financial institution, the Company participates in the securitization agreement as an
investor in the conduit. The Company continues to service, administer and collect the receivables on behalf of the
special purpose entity. The Company pays annual facility and commitment fees ranging from 0.16% to 0.40%
(averaging approximately 0.25%) for unused amounts and an additional program fee of 0.10% on outstanding
amounts. The securitization agreement allows the operating subsidiaries participating in the securitization program to
receive a cash payment for sold receivables, less a deferred purchase price receivable. The Company�s share of the
total investment varies depending on certain criteria, mainly the collection performance on the sold receivables.
     As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, approximately $537.7 million and $427.7 million of the Company�s
accounts receivable, respectively, had been sold to the third-party qualified special purpose entity described above,
which represent the face amount of the total outstanding trade receivables on all designated customer accounts on
those dates. The Company received net cash proceeds of approximately $416.4 million and $334.0 million from the
unaffiliated financial institutions for the sale of these receivables as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007,
respectively. The Company has a recourse obligation that is limited to the deferred purchase price receivable, which
approximates 5% of the total sold receivables, and its own investment participation, the total of which was
approximately $121.3 million and $93.7 million as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively. The Company
also sold accounts receivables to certain third-party banking institutions with limited recourse, which management
believes is nominal. The outstanding balance of receivables sold and not yet collected was approximately
$443.5 million and $398.7 million as of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, respectively.
     In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities� (�SFAS 140�), the accounts receivable balances that were sold
were removed from the condensed consolidated balance sheets and are reflected as cash provided by operating
activities in the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows.
NOTE I � RESTRUCTURING CHARGES
     In recent years, the Company has initiated a series of restructuring activities intended to realign the Company�s
global capacity and infrastructure with demand by its OEM customers so as to optimize the operational efficiency,
which include reducing excess workforce and capacity, and consolidating and relocating certain manufacturing and
administrative facilities to lower-cost regions.
     The restructuring costs include employee severance, costs related to leased facilities, owned facilities that are no
longer in use and are to be disposed of, leased equipment that is no longer in use and will be disposed of, and other
costs associated with the exit of certain contractual agreements due to facility closures. The overall impact of these
activities is that the Company shifts its manufacturing capacity to locations with higher efficiencies and, in most
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instances, lower costs, and better utilizes its overall existing manufacturing capacity. This enhances the Company�s
ability to provide cost-effective manufacturing service offerings, which enables it to retain and expand the Company�s
existing relationships with customers and attract new business.
     As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, assets that were no longer in use and held for sale as a result of
restructuring activities totaled approximately $15.9 million and $24.2 million, respectively, primarily representing
manufacturing facilities located in the Americas that have been closed as part of the Company�s historical facility
consolidations. For assets held for sale, depreciation ceases and an impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its fair value less cost to sell. Assets held for sale are included in other current assets and
other assets in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.
Fiscal Year 2008

     The Company recognized restructuring charges of approximately $10.7 million during the three-month period
ended June 29, 2007 for employee termination costs associated with the involuntary termination of 173 identified
employees in Europe. The activities associated with these charges will be substantially completed within one year of
the commitment dates of the respective activities. The Company classified approximately $9.8 million of these
charges as a component of cost of sales during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007.
     The following table summarizes the provisions, respective payments, and remaining accrued balance as of June 29,
2007 for charges incurred in fiscal year 2008 and prior periods:

Long-Lived
Asset Other

Severance Impairment Exit Costs Total
(In thousands)

Balance as of March 31, 2007   $ 37,764   $ �   $ 29,447   $ 67,211
Activities during the first quarter:
Provisions incurred in fiscal year 2008 10,674 � � 10,674
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2008 (19) � � (19)
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2007 (5,321) � (1,141) (6,462)
Cash payments for charges incurred in fiscal year 2006
and prior (3,060) � (1,199) (4,259)

Balance as of June 29, 2007 40,038 � 27,107 67,145
Less: current portion (classified as other current
liabilities) (37,167) � (8,328) (45,495)

Accrued facility closure costs, net of current portion
(classified as
other liabilities)   $ 2,871   $ �   $ 18,779   $ 21,650

     As of June 29, 2007, accrued employee termination costs related to restructuring charges incurred during fiscal
year 2008 were approximately $10.7 million, the entire amount of which was classified as current. As of June 29,
2007 and March 31, 2007, accrued facility closure costs related to restructuring charges incurred during fiscal year
2007 were approximately $37.9 million and $44.4 million, respectively, of which approximately $15.2 million and
$15.1 million, respectively, was classified as a long-term obligation. As of June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007, accrued
facility closure costs related to restructuring charges incurred during fiscal years 2006 and prior were approximately
$18.5 million and $22.8 million, respectively, of which approximately $6.4 million and $6.7 million, respectively, was
classified as a long-term obligation.
Fiscal Year 2007

     During fiscal year 2007, the Company recognized charges of approximately $151.9 million associated with the
consolidation and closure of several manufacturing facilities including the related impairment of certain long-lived
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assets; and other charges primarily related to the exit of certain real estate owned and leased by the Company in order
to reduce its investment in property, plant and equipment. The Company classified approximately $146.8 million of
these charges as a component of cost of sales during fiscal year 2007. The Company did not recognize any of these
restructuring charges during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006. The activities associated with these charges
will be substantially completed within one year of the commitment dates of the respective activities, except for certain
long-term contractual obligations.
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     The components of the restructuring charges during the first, second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2007
were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

(In thousands)
Americas:
Severance   $ �   $ 130   $ �   $ �   $ 130
Long-lived asset impairment � 38,320 � � 38,320
Other exit costs � 20,554 � � 20,554

Total restructuring charges � 59,004 � � 59,004

Asia:
Severance � � � 2,484 2,484
Long-lived asset impairment � 6,869 � 13,532 20,401
Other exit costs � 15,620 � 11,039 26,659

Total restructuring charges � 22,489 � 27,055 49,544

Europe:
Severance � 409 � 23,236 23,645
Long-lived asset impairment � 2,496 � 3,190 5,686
Other exit costs � 11,850 � 2,128 13,978

Total restructuring charges � 14,755 � 28,554 43,309

Total
Severance � 539 � 25,720 26,259
Long-lived asset impairment � 47,685 � 16,722 64,407
Other exit costs � 48,024 � 13,167 61,191

Total restructuring charges   $ �   $ 96,248   $ �   $ 55,609   $ 151,857

     During fiscal year 2007, the Company recognized approximately $26.3 million of employee termination costs
associated with the involuntary termination of 2,155 identified employees in connection with the charges described
above. The identified involuntary employee terminations by reportable geographic region amounted to approximately
1,560, 550 and 40 for Asia, Europe, and the Americas, respectively. Approximately $22.1 million was classified as a
component of cost of sales.
     During fiscal year 2007, the Company recognized approximately $64.4 million for the write-down of property and
equipment to management�s estimate of fair value associated with the planned disposal and exit of certain real estate
owned and leased by the Company. Approximately $63.8 million of this amount was classified as a component of cost
of sales. The charges recognized during fiscal year 2007 also included approximately $61.2 million for other exit
costs, of which $60.9 million was classified as a component of cost of sales and were primarily comprised of
contractual obligations amounting to approximately $27.1 million, customer disengagement costs of approximately
$28.5 million and approximately $5.6 million of other costs.
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     For further discussion of the Company�s historical restructuring activities, refer to Note 10 �Restructuring Charges� to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company�s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007.
NOTE J � OTHER INCOME, NET
     During the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 the Company recognized a gain of approximately $9.3 million
in connection with the divestiture of a certain international entity, which was primarily related to the realization of
cumulative foreign exchange translation gains. The results of operations for this entity were not significant for all
periods presented.
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NOTE K � COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
     The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. The
Company defends itself vigorously against any such claims. Although the outcome of these matters is currently not
determinable, management does not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a material adverse
effect on its condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
     On June 4, 2007, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Solectron in a cash and stock
transaction preliminarily valued at $3.7 billion, including estimated transaction related costs. Refer to the discussion
of the Company�s definitive agreement with Solectron in Note L, �Acquisitions and Divestitures.�
NOTE L � ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
Solectron Acquisition

     On June 4, 2007, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the �Merger Agreement�) with
Solectron Corporation (�Solectron�), pursuant to which the Company will acquire Solectron. If the merger is completed,
Solectron stockholders will be entitled to receive, for each share of Solectron common stock they own and at the
election of the stockholder, either: (i) 0.3450 of a Flextronics ordinary share, or (ii) a cash payment of $3.89, without
interest. As further described in the joint proxy statement/prospectus, which forms a part of a registration statement on
Form S-4/A filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on August 7, 2007, the
Merger Agreement provides that, regardless of the elections made by Solectron stockholders, no more than 70% of
Solectron�s outstanding shares of common stock (including the outstanding exchangeable shares of Solectron Global
Services Canada Inc.) can be converted into the Company�s ordinary shares, and no more than 50% of Solectron�s
outstanding shares of common stock (including the outstanding exchangeable shares of Solectron Global Services
Canada Inc.) can be converted into cash. Therefore, the cash and stock elections made by Solectron stockholders may
be subject to pro-ration based on these limits. As a result, Solectron stockholders that have elected to receive either
cash or Flextronics ordinary shares could in certain circumstances receive a combination of both cash and ordinary
shares of the Company. Additionally, the Company would also assume each outstanding option to purchase Solectron
common stock with an exercise price equal to or less than $5.00, whether or not exercisable.
     The transaction will be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The total preliminary estimated
purchase price is approximately $3.7 billion, including estimated transaction costs, comprised primarily of the
Company�s ordinary shares, cash, direct transaction costs and assumed vested stock options. The Company currently
estimates that the acquisition of Solectron could require up to $1.9 billion for funding the cash portion of the merger,
including acquisition and financing related costs, assuming holders of 50% of Solectron�s outstanding shares elect to
receive cash. While the Company continues to evaluate alternative long-term financing arrangements, Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. has committed to provide the Company with a $2.5 billion seven-year senior unsecured term loan
to fund the cash requirements for this transaction (including the refinancing of Solectron�s debt, if required). The
merger is not conditioned on receipt of financing by the Company.
     The acquisition cannot be completed unless the Company�s shareholders approve the issuance of Flextronics
ordinary shares pursuant to the Merger Agreement and Solectron�s stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement, each at
their respective stockholders� meetings. The completion of the merger is also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of
other conditions that are contained in the Merger Agreement, including regulatory approvals. The acquisition is
expected to close in the quarter ended December 31, 2007. The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights
for both the Company and Solectron, and further provides for payment of a termination fee of $100.0 million by either
Solectron or the Company upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified circumstances.
Acquisitions

     The business and asset acquisitions described below were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting,
and accordingly, the fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses were included in
the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. The Company has not
finalized the allocation of the consideration for certain of its recently completed acquisitions and
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expects to complete these valuations within one year of the respective acquisition date.
Nortel

     On June 29, 2004, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with Nortel providing for the Company�s
purchase of certain of Nortel�s optical, wireless, wireline and enterprise manufacturing operations and optical design
operations. The purchase of these assets has occurred in stages, with the final stage of the asset purchase occurring in
May 2006 as the Company completed the acquisition of the manufacturing system house operations in Calgary,
Canada.
     Flextronics provides the majority of Nortel�s systems integration activities, final assembly, testing and repair
operations, along with the management of the related supply chain and suppliers, under a four-year manufacturing
agreement. Additionally, Flextronics provides Nortel with design services for end-to-end, carrier grade optical
network products.
     The aggregate purchase price for the assets acquired, net of closing costs, was approximately $594.4 million, of
which no amount was paid in the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, as there were no further amounts due
Nortel under the asset purchase agreement. Approximately $70.0 million was paid during the three-month period
ended June 30, 2006. The allocation of the purchase price to specific assets and liabilities was based upon
management�s estimates of cash flow and recoverability and was approximately $340.2 million to inventory,
$40.8 million to fixed assets and other, and $118.5 million to current and non-current liabilities with the remaining
amounts being allocated to intangible assets, including goodwill. The purchases have resulted in purchased intangible
assets of approximately $49.4 million, primarily related to customer relationships and contractual agreements with
weighted-average useful lives of 8 years, and goodwill of approximately $282.5 million. On October 13, 2006, the
Company entered into an amendment (�Nortel Amendment�) to the various agreements with Nortel to expand Nortel�s
obligation for reimbursement for certain costs associated with the transaction. The allocation of the purchase price to
specific assets and liabilities is subject to adjustment based on the nature of the costs that are contingently
reimbursable under the Nortel Amendment through fiscal year 2008. The contingent reimbursement has not been
recorded as part of the purchase price, pending the outcome of the contingency.
International DisplayWorks, Inc. (�IDW�)

     On November 30, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of 100% of the outstanding common stock of IDW
in a stock-for-stock merger for total purchase consideration of approximately $299.6 million. The allocation of the
purchase price to specific assets and liabilities was based upon managements� estimate of cash flow and recoverability.
As of June 29, 2007, management estimates the allocation to be approximately $105.8 million to current assets,
primarily comprised of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable and inventory,
approximately $30.6 million to fixed assets, and approximately $61.0 million to assumed liabilities, primarily
accounts payable and other current liabilities, with the remaining amounts allocated to intangible assets, including
goodwill. The purchases have resulted in purchased intangible assets of approximately $29.0 million, primarily related
to customer relationships and contractual agreements with weighted-average useful lives of 8 years, and goodwill of
approximately $195.2 million. The allocation of the purchase price to specific assets and liabilities, including
intangible assets and goodwill, is subject to final purchase price adjustments.
     Pro forma results for the Company�s acquisitions of Nortel�s operations in Calgary, Canada, and IDW have not been
presented for the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006 as such results were not materially
different from the Company�s actual results.
Other Acquisitions

     Comparative pro forma information for the acquisitions described below has not been presented, as the results of
operations were not material to the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements on either an individual or
an aggregate basis.
     During the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, the Company completed one acquisition that was not
significant to the Company�s condensed consolidated results for continuing operations and financial position. The
acquired business complements the Company�s design and manufacturing of test equipment for the industrial market
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segment. The aggregate purchase price for this acquisition totaled approximately $25.5 million, which was financed
with a 90 day seller note and subsequently paid during September 2007 quarter. The Company also paid $15.7 million
for the purchase of an additional 3% incremental ownership of Flextronics Software Systems Limited (�FSS�), which
was subsequently sold with the Company�s Software Development and Solutions Business. Accordingly, the results of
operations of FSS are reflected in discontinued operations. In addition, the Company paid approximately $5.0 million
in cash for contingent purchase price adjustments relating to certain historical acquisitions, all of which were
attributable to discontinued operations. Identifiable intangible assets, primarily related to customer relationships and
contractual agreements with weighted-average useful lives of 7 years, and goodwill, resulting from these transactions
as well as from purchase price adjustments for certain historical acquisitions, were approximately $2.0 million and
$17.5 million, respectively. All of the goodwill was attributable to discontinued operations. The purchase price for
these acquisitions has been allocated on the basis of the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The purchase price for acquisitions attributable to continuing operations is subject to adjustments for contingent
consideration, based upon the businesses achieving specified levels of earnings through January 2008. Generally, the
contingent consideration has not been recorded as part of the purchase price, pending the outcome of the contingency.
NOTE M � DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
     Consistent with its strategy to evaluate the strategic and financial contributions of each of its operations and to
focus on the primary growth objectives in the Company�s core EMS vertically-integrated business activities, the
Company divested its Software Development and Solutions business in September 2006. In conjunction with the
divestiture of the Software Development and Solutions business, the Company retained a 15% equity interest in the
divested business. As the Company does not have the ability to significantly influence the operating decisions of the
divested business, the cost method of accounting for the investment is used.
     In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets� (�SFAS 144�), the divestiture of the Software Development and Solutions business
qualifies as discontinued operations, and accordingly, the Company has reported the results of operations and financial
position of this business in discontinued operations within the statements of operations for the three-month period
ended June 30, 2006. As the divestiture of the Company�s Software Development and Solutions business was
completed in September 2006, there were no results from discontinued operations for the three-month period ended
June 29, 2007, or assets or liabilities attributable to discontinued operations as of June 29, 2007 or March 31, 2007.
     The results from discontinued operations for the three-month period ended June 30, 2006 were as follows (in
thousands):

Net sales $ 70,109
Cost of sales (including $7 of stock-based compensation expense for the
three-month period ended June 30, 2006) 43,536

Gross profit 26,573
Selling, general and administrative expenses (including $346 of stock-based
compensation expense for the three-month period ended June 30, 2006) 14,086
Intangible amortization 3,065
Interest and other (income) expense, net (1,562)

Income before income taxes 10,984
Provision for income taxes 2,168

Net income of discontinued operations $ 8,816
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS
     Unless otherwise specifically stated, references in this report to �Flextronics,� �the Company,� �we,� �us,� �our� and similar
terms mean Flextronics International Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
     This report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The words �expects,�
�anticipates,� �believes,� �intends,� �plans� and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. In addition, any
statements which refer to expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are
forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly disclose any revisions to these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring subsequent to filing this Form 10-Q with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, including, without
limitation, those discussed in this section, as well as in Part II, Item 1A, �Risk Factors� of this report on Form 10-Q, and
in Part I, Item 1A, �Risk Factors� and in Part II, Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2007. In addition, new
risks emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk factors or to assess the
impact of such risk factors on our business. Accordingly, our future results may differ materially from historical
results or from those discussed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties,
the reader should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.
OVERVIEW
     We are a leading provider of advanced design and electronics manufacturing services (�EMS�) to original equipment
manufacturers (�OEMs�) of a broad range of products in the following markets: computing; mobile communication
devices; consumer digital devices; telecommunications infrastructure; industrial, semiconductor and white goods;
automotive, marine and aerospace; and medical devices. We provide a full range of vertically-integrated global supply
chain services through which we design, build, and ship a complete packaged product for our customers. Customers
leverage our services to meet their product requirements throughout the entire product life cycle. Our
vertically-integrated service offerings include: design services; rigid printed circuit board and flexible circuit
fabrication; systems assembly and manufacturing; logistics; after-sales services; and multiple component product
offerings.
     We are one of the world�s largest EMS providers, with revenues from continuing operations of $5.2 billion during
the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, and $18.9 billion in fiscal year 2007. As of March 31, 2007, our total
manufacturing capacity was approximately 17.7 million square feet in over 30 countries across four continents. We
have established an extensive network of manufacturing facilities in the world�s major electronics markets (Asia, the
Americas and Europe) in order to serve the growing outsourcing needs of both multinational and regional OEMs. For
the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, our net sales from continuing operations in Asia, the Americas and
Europe represented approximately 59%, 25% and 16%, respectively, of our total net sales from continuing operations.
     We believe that the combination of our extensive design and engineering services, global presence,
vertically-integrated end-to-end services, advanced supply chain management, industrial campuses in low-cost
geographic areas, operational track record as well as depth in management provide us with a competitive advantage in
the market for designing and manufacturing electronics products for leading multinational OEMs. Through these
services and facilities, we simplify the global product development and manufacturing process and provide
meaningful time-to-market and cost savings for our OEM customers.
     The EMS industry has experienced rapid change and growth over the past decade. The demand for advanced
manufacturing capabilities and related supply chain management services continues to escalate as an increasing
number of OEMs have outsourced some or all of their design and manufacturing requirements. Price pressure on our
customers� products in their end markets has led to increased demand for EMS production capacity in the lower-cost
regions of the world, such as China, India, Malaysia, Mexico, and Eastern Europe, where we have a significant
presence. We have responded by making strategic decisions to realign our global capacity and infrastructure with the
demands of our customers to optimize the operating efficiencies that can be provided by our global presence. The
overall impact of these activities is that we have shifted our manufacturing capacity to locations with higher
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manufacturing service in order for us to retain and expand our existing relationships with customers and attract new
business. As a result, we have recognized a significant amount of restructuring charges in connection with the
realignment of our global capacity and infrastructure.
   Our operating results are affected by a number of factors, including the following:
� our customers may not be successful in marketing their products, their products may not gain widespread

commercial acceptance, and our customers� products have short product life cycles;

� our customers may cancel or delay orders or change production quantities;

� integration of acquired businesses and facilities;

� our operating results vary significantly from period to period due to the mix of the manufacturing services we are
providing, the number and size of new manufacturing programs, the degree to which we utilize our manufacturing
capacity, seasonal demand, shortages of components and other factors;

� our increased design services and components offerings may reduce our profitability as we are required to make
substantial investments in the resources necessary to design and develop these products without guarantee of cost
recovery and margin generation;

� our ability to achieve commercially viable production yields and to manufacture components in commercial
quantities to the performance specifications demanded by our OEM customers; and

� managing growth and changes in our operations.
   We have actively pursued acquisitions and purchases of manufacturing facilities, design and engineering resources
and technologies in order to expand our worldwide operations, broaden our service offerings, diversify and strengthen
our customer relationships, and enhance our competitive position as a leading provider of comprehensive outsourcing
solutions. On June 4, 2007, we entered into an agreement and plan of merger with Solectron Corporation (�Solectron�),
pursuant to which we will acquire Solectron in a stock and cash transaction with a preliminary estimated value of
approximately $3.7 billion, including estimated transaction costs. While we continue to evaluate alternative long-term
financing arrangements, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. has committed to provide the Company with a $2.5 billion
seven-year senior unsecured term loan to fund the cash requirements for this transaction (including the refinancing of
Solectron�s debt, if required). For further discussion regarding the specific terms of the transaction, associated risks and
conditions to closing, refer to Note L �Acquisitions and Divestitures� to our condensed consolidated financial
statements, and our joint proxy statement/prospectus, which forms a part of a registration statement on Form S-4/A
filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) on August 7, 2007.
     The acquisition cannot be completed unless our shareholders approve the issuance of Flextronics ordinary shares
pursuant to the Merger Agreement and Solectron�s stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement, each at their respective
stockholder meetings. The completion of the merger is also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of other conditions
that are contained in the Merger Agreement, including regulatory approvals. The acquisition is expected to close in the
quarter ended December 31, 2007.
     If we complete the acquisition of Solectron, our operating results also will be affected by integration and
restructuring activities related to the acquisition.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
     We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our condensed consolidated financial statements. For further discussion of our significant
accounting policies, refer to Note 2, �Summary of Accounting Policies,� of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 and the Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements in this report on Form 10-Q.
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Revenue Recognition
     We recognize manufacturing revenue when we ship goods or the goods are received by our customer, title and risk
of ownership have passed, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and recoverability is reasonably assured.
Generally, there are no formal customer acceptance requirements or further obligations related to manufacturing
services. If such requirements or obligations exist, then we recognize the related revenues at the time when such
requirements are completed and the obligations are fulfilled. We make provisions for estimated sales returns and other
adjustments at the time revenue is recognized based upon contractual terms and an analysis of historical returns. These
provisions were not material to our condensed consolidated financial statements for the three-month periods ended
June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006.
     We provide a comprehensive suite of services for our customers that range from contract design services to original
product design to repair services. We recognize service revenue when the services have been performed, and the
related costs are expensed as incurred. Our net sales for services from continuing operations were less than 10% of our
total sales from continuing operations during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, and
accordingly, are included in net sales in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.
Stock-Based Compensation

     We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004),
�Share-Based Payment� (�SFAS 123(R)�). Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R), stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period of the award. Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the
fair value of stock-based awards at the grant date requires judgment, including estimating stock price volatility and
expected option life. If actual forfeitures or expectations regarding the Company�s achievement of certain performance
goals when vesting is contingent upon both a service and performance condition differ significantly from our
estimates, adjustments to compensation cost may be required in future periods.
Restructuring Costs

     We recognize restructuring charges related to our plans to close or consolidate duplicate manufacturing and
administrative facilities. In connection with these activities, we recognize restructuring charges for employee
termination costs, long-lived asset impairment and other restructuring-related costs.
     The recognition of the restructuring charges require that we make certain judgments and estimates regarding the
nature, timing and amount of costs associated with the planned exit activity. To the extent our actual results in exiting
these facilities differ from our estimates and assumptions, we may be required to revise the estimates of future
liabilities, requiring the recognition of additional restructuring charges or the reduction of liabilities already
recognized. At the end of each reporting period, we evaluate the remaining accrued balances to ensure that no excess
accruals are retained and the utilization of the provisions are for their intended purpose in accordance with developed
exit plans.
     Refer to Note I, �Restructuring Charges,� of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion of our restructuring activities.
Income Taxes

     Our deferred income tax assets represent temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax basis of
existing assets and liabilities which will result in deductible amounts in future years, including net operating loss
carryforwards. Based on estimates, the carrying value of our net deferred tax assets assumes that it is
more-likely-than-not that we will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions to
realize these deferred income tax assets. Our judgments regarding future profitability may change due to future market
conditions, changes in U.S. or international tax laws and other factors. If these estimates and related assumptions
change in the future, we may be required to increase or decrease our valuation allowance against deferred tax assets
previously recognized, resulting in additional or lesser income tax expense.
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     In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes� (�FIN 48�) as an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes� (�SFAS 109�), which clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and
also provides guidance on de-recognition of tax benefits previously recognized. We adopted FIN 48 in the first quarter
of fiscal year 2008, and did not recognize any adjustments to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of
the implementation of FIN 48.
     Our unrecognized tax benefits are subject to change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the
expiration of certain statutes of limitations. Although the amount of these adjustments cannot be reasonably estimated
at this time, we are not currently aware of any material impact on our condensed consolidated results of operations
and financial condition.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

     We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers� financial condition and make provisions for doubtful
accounts based on the outcome of our credit evaluations. We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable
based on specific customer circumstances, current economic trends, historical experience with collections and the age
of past due receivables. Unanticipated changes in the liquidity or financial position of our customers may require
additional provisions for doubtful accounts.
 Inventory Valuation

     Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out basis) or market value. Our industry is
characterized by rapid technological change, short-term customer commitments and rapid changes in demand. We
make provisions for estimated excess and obsolete inventory based on our regular reviews of inventory quantities on
hand and the latest forecasts of product demand and production requirements from our customers. If actual market
conditions or our customers� product demands are less favorable than those projected, additional provisions may be
required. In addition, unanticipated changes in the liquidity or financial position of our customers and/or changes in
economic conditions may require additional provisions for inventories due to our customers� inability to fulfill their
contractual obligations with regard to inventory procured to fulfill customer demand.
 Purchase Accounting

     We have actively pursued business and asset acquisitions, which are accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The fair value of the net assets acquired and the results of the acquired businesses are included in our
condensed consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates forward. Under the purchase method of
accounting we are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and results of operations during the reporting period. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other things, the fair
value of acquired net operating assets, property and equipment, intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities,
useful lives of plant and equipment and amortizable lives for acquired intangible assets. Any excess of the purchase
consideration over the identified fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.
Additionally, we may be required to recognize liabilities for anticipated restructuring costs that will be necessary due
to the elimination of excess capacity, redundant assets or unnecessary functions. Certain liabilities associated with
these restructuring activities are recorded as liabilities assumed in the acquisition with a corresponding increase in
goodwill and no impact on operating results.
     We estimate the preliminary fair value of acquired assets and liabilities as of the date of acquisition based on
information available at that time and other estimates that management believes are reasonable. The valuation of these
tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities is subject to further management review and may change
materially between the preliminary allocation and end of the purchase price allocation period. Any changes in these
estimates may have a material impact on our condensed consolidated operating results or financial condition.
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 Long-Lived Assets
     We review property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. Recoverability of property and equipment is measured by comparing its
carrying amount to the projected cash flows the property and equipment are expected to generate. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment loss recognized, if any, is the amount by which the carrying amount of the
property and equipment exceeds the projected discounted cash flows the property and equipment are expected to
generate.
     We evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis. We also evaluate goodwill and other intangibles for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable
from its estimated future cash flows. Recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level by comparing
the reporting unit�s carrying amount, including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. If the carrying amount
of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the amount of impairment loss recognized, if any, is measured using a
discounted cash flow analysis. If, at the time of our annual evaluation, the net asset value (or �book value�) of any
reporting unit is greater than its fair value, some or all of the related goodwill would likely be considered to be
impaired. Further, to the extent the carrying value of the Company as a whole is greater than its market capitalization,
all, or a significant portion of our goodwill may be considered impaired. To date, we have not recognized any
impairment of our goodwill and other intangible assets in connection with our impairment evaluations. However, we
have recognized impairment charges in connection with our restructuring activities.
 Long-term Investments

     We have certain investments in, and notes receivable from, non-publicly traded companies, which are included
within other assets in our consolidated balance sheets. Non-majority-owned investments are accounted for using the
equity method when we have an ownership percentage equal to or greater than 20%, or have the ability to
significantly influence the operating decisions of the issuer; otherwise the cost method is used. We monitor these
investments for impairment and make appropriate reductions in carrying values if we determine an impairment charge
is required, based primarily on the financial condition and prospects of these companies. Our ongoing consideration of
these factors could result in additional impairment charges in the future, which could adversely affect our results of
operations.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

     In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 156, �Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets� (�SFAS 156�),
which amends SFAS 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities.� SFAS 156 requires recognition of a servicing asset or liability at fair value each time an obligation is
undertaken to service a financial asset by entering into a servicing contract. SFAS 156 also provides guidance on
subsequent measurement methods for each class of servicing assets and liabilities and specifies financial statement
presentation and disclosure requirements. SFAS 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006
and was adopted by us in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008. The adoption of SFAS 156 did not have a material
impact on our condensed consolidated results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
     In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes� (�FIN 48�) as an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes� (�SFAS 109�). This Interpretation clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition of tax benefits previously recognized and
additional disclosures for unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties. The evaluation of a tax position in
accordance with this Interpretation begins with a determination as to whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax
position will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement for recognition in the financial statements. FIN 48 is
effective no later than fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, and was adopted by us in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2008.
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     We did not recognize any adjustments to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the
implementation of FIN 48 other than to reclassify $65.0 million from other current liabilities to other liabilities as
required by the Interpretation. As of April 1, 2007, we had approximately $66.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits,
substantially all of which, if recognized, would affect our tax expense. Our unrecognized tax benefits are subject to
change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the expiration of certain statutes of limitations. Although
the amount of these adjustments cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, we are not currently aware of any
material impact on our condensed consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
     The Company and its subsidiaries file federal, state and local income tax returns in multiple jurisdictions around
the world. With a few exceptions, we are no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years
before 2000.
     We have elected to include estimated interest and penalties on our tax liabilities as a component of tax expense.
Estimated interest and penalties recognized in the condensed consolidated balance sheet and condensed consolidated
statement of operations were not significant.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
     The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain statements of operations data expressed as a
percentage of net sales. The financial information and the discussion below should be read in conjunction with the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in this document. In addition, reference
should be made to our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto and related Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The data below, and discussion that follows, represent our results from continuing operations. Information
related to the results of discontinued operations is provided separately following the continuing operations discussion.

Three-Month Periods Ended
June
29,

2007
June 30,
2006

Net sales 100.0   % 100.0   %
Cost of sales 94.4 94.2
Restructuring charges 0.2 �

Gross profit 5.4 5.8
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2.8 2.9
Intangible amortization 0.3 0.2
Restructuring charges � �
Other income, net (0.2) �
Interest and other expense, net 0.3 0.7

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 2.2 2.0
Provision for income taxes 0.1 0.1

Income from continuing operations 2.1 1.9
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax � 0.2

Net income 2.1   % 2.1   %

Net Sales
     Net sales during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 totaled $5.2 billion, representing an increase of
$1.1 billion, or 27.0%, from $4.1 billion during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, primarily due to new
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program wins from various customers across multiple markets. Sales increased across the following markets we serve;
(i) $437.8 million in the telecommunications infrastructure market, (ii) $382.4 million in the mobile communications
market, (iii) $183.7 million in the consumer digital market, and (iv) $160.9 million in the industrial, medical,
automotive and other markets, and was offset by a decrease of $66.9 million in the computing market. Net sales
during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 increased by $663.3 million, $365.4 million and $69.2 million in
Asia, the Americas and Europe, respectively.
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     Our ten largest customers during the three-month periods ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006 accounted for
approximately 62% and 66% of net sales, respectively, with Sony-Ericsson accounting for greater than 10% of our net
sales during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 and Sony-Ericsson, Hewlett-Packard and Nortel each
accounting for greater than 10% of our net sales during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006.
Gross Profit

     Gross profit is affected by a number of factors, including the number and size of new manufacturing programs,
product mix, component costs and availability, product life cycles, unit volumes, pricing, competition, new product
introductions, capacity utilization and the expansion and consolidation of manufacturing facilities. Typically,
profitability lags revenue growth in new programs due to product start-up costs, lower manufacturing program
volumes in the start-up phase, operational inefficiencies, and under-absorbed overhead. Gross margin often improves
over time as manufacturing program volumes increase, as our utilization rates and overhead absorption improves, and
as we increase the level of vertically-integrated manufacturing services content. As a result, our gross margin varies
from period to period.
     Gross profit during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 increased $44.8 million to $280.8 million, or 5.4%
of net sales, from $236.0 million, or 5.8% of net sales, during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006. The 40
basis point period-over-period decrease in gross margin was primarily attributable to a 20 basis point increase in cost
of sales related to higher volume, lower margin customer programs, and higher start-up and integration costs
associated with multiple new large scale programs, and 20 basis points for restructuring charges incurred during the
three-month period ended June 29, 2007.
Restructuring Charges

     In recent years, we have initiated a series of restructuring activities which are intended to realign our global
capacity and infrastructure with demand by our OEM customers and thereby improve our operational efficiency.
These activities included:

� reducing excess workforce and capacity;
� consolidating and relocating certain manufacturing facilities to lower-cost regions; and
� consolidating and relocating certain administrative facilities.

     These restructuring costs include employee severance, costs related to owned and leased facilities and equipment
that are no longer in use and are to be disposed of, and other costs associated with the exit of certain contractual
agreements due to facility closures. The overall impact of these activities is that we shift our manufacturing capacity
to locations with higher efficiencies and, in most instances, lower costs, and better utilize our overall existing
manufacturing capacity. This enhances our ability to provide cost-effective manufacturing service offerings, which
enables us to retain and expand our existing relationships with customers and attract new business. We may utilize
similar measures in the future to realign our operations relative to changing customer demand, which may materially
affect our results of operations in the future. We believe that the potential savings in cost of goods sold achieved
through lower depreciation and reduced employee expenses as a result of our restructurings will be offset in part by
reduced revenues at the affected facilities.
     During the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, we recognized restructuring charges of approximately
$10.7 million for involuntary employee terminations in Europe. Approximately $9.8 million of the charges were
classified as a component of cost of sales. As of June 29, 2007, accrued employee termination and facility closure
costs related to restructuring charges incurred during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 and prior were
approximately $67.1 million, of which approximately $21.6 million was classified as a long-term obligation.
     We did not recognize any restructuring charges during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006.
     Refer to Note I, �Restructuring Charges,� of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion of our historical restructuring activities.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
     Our selling, general and administrative expenses, or SG&A, amounted to $146.6 million, or 2.8% of net sales,
during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, compared to $119.1 million, or 2.9% of net sales, during the
three-month period ended June 30, 2006. The increase in SG&A during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007
was attributable to our business and asset acquisitions during the 2007 fiscal year, continued investments in resources
necessary to support our accelerating revenue growth as well as investments in certain technical capabilities to
enhance our overall design and engineering competencies. The improvement in SG&A as a percentage of net sales
during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 was primarily attributable to higher net sales.
Intangible Amortization

     Amortization of intangible assets during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 increased by $9.5 million to
$16.7 million from $7.2 million during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006. The increase in expense during
the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 was attributable to the amortization of intangible assets acquired over the
12 months ended June 29, 2007, which were primarily related to our acquisitions of Nortel�s system house operations
in Calgary, Canada, IDW and other smaller businesses that were not individually significant to our condensed
consolidated results.
Other Income, Net

     During the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 we recognized a gain of approximately $9.3 million in
connection with the divestiture of a certain international entity, which was primarily related to the realization of
cumulative foreign exchange translation gains.
Interest and Other Expense, Net

     Interest and other expense, net was $15.6 million during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 compared to
$29.2 million during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, a decrease of $13.6 million. The decrease in
expense is primarily the result of interest and other income earned on our $250.0 million face value promissory note
and certain other agreements received in connection with the divestiture of our Software Development and Solutions
business during the second quarter of fiscal year 2007.
Income Taxes

     Certain of our subsidiaries have, at various times, been granted tax relief in their respective countries, resulting in
lower income taxes than would otherwise be the case under ordinary tax rates. Refer to Note 8, �Income Taxes,� of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007 for further discussion.
     Our consolidated effective tax rate was an expense of 3.1% and 5.9% during the three-month periods ended
June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively.
     The consolidated effective tax rate for a particular period varies depending on the amount of earnings from
different jurisdictions, operating loss carryforwards, income tax credits, changes in previously established valuation
allowances for deferred tax assets based upon our current analysis of the realizability of these deferred tax assets, as
well as certain tax holidays and incentives granted to our subsidiaries primarily in China, Hungary, and Malaysia.
     In evaluating the realizability of deferred tax assets, we consider our recent history of operating income and losses
by jurisdiction, exclusive of items that we believe are non-recurring in nature such as restructuring charges. We also
consider the future projected operating income in the relevant jurisdiction and the effect of any tax planning strategies.
Based on this analysis, we believe that the current valuation allowance is adequate.
     In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes� (�FIN 48�) as an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes� (�SFAS 109�), which clarifies the
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accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized by prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return, and also provides guidance on de-recognition of tax benefits previously recognized. We adopted FIN 48 in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2008.
     We did not recognize any adjustments to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the
implementation of FIN 48. As of April 1, 2007, we had approximately $66.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits,
substantially all of which, if recognized, would affect our tax expense. Our unrecognized tax benefits are subject to
change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the expiration of certain statutes of limitations. Although
the amount of these adjustments cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, we are not currently aware of any
material impact on our condensed consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

Discontinued Operations
     Consistent with our strategy to evaluate the strategic and financial contributions of each of our operations and to
focus on the primary growth objectives in our core EMS vertically-integrated business activities, we divested our
Software Development and Solutions business in September 2006. Additional information regarding our discontinued
operations is provided in Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� of our Annual Report on our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
     In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets� (�SFAS 144�), the divestiture of our Software Development and Solutions business
qualifies as discontinued operations, and accordingly, we have reported the results of operations and financial position
of this business in discontinued operations within the statements of operations for the three-month period ended
June 30, 2006. As the divestiture of our Software Development and Solutions business was completed in
September 2006, there were no results from discontinued operations for the three-month period ended June 29, 2007.
     The results from discontinued operations for the three-month period ended June 30, 2006 were as follows (in
thousands):

Net sales $ 70,109
Cost of sales 43,536

Gross profit 26,573
Selling, general and administrative expenses 14,086
Intangible amortization 3,065
Interest and other (income) expense, net (1,562)

Income before income taxes 10,984
Provision for income taxes 2,168

Net income of discontinued operations $ 8,816

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES � CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
     As of June 29, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $770.0 million and bank and other borrowings of
$1.5 billion. As discussed in Note F, �Bank Borrowings and Long-Term Debt,� of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, on May 10, 2007, we replaced our $1.35 billion revolving credit facility with a new $2.0 billion
credit facility, under which we had no borrowings outstanding as of June 29, 2007. The $2.0 billion credit facility and
our other various credit facilities are subject to compliance with certain financial covenants. As of June 29, 2007, we
were in compliance with the financial covenants under our indentures and credit facilities. Working capital as of
June 29, 2007 and March 31, 2007 was approximately $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion, respectively.
     Cash provided by operating activities amounted to $144.6 million during the three-month period ended June 29,
2007, as compared to cash used in operating activities of $97.9 million during the three-month period ended June 30,
2006.
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either directly or as a non-cash adjustment to net income:
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� net income of $106.9 million;

� depreciation and amortization of $87.7 million;

� non-cash stock-based compensation expense of $8.7 million;

� a decrease in inventories of $48.6 million; and

� an increase in accounts payable and other liabilities of $226.1 million.
     During the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, the following items reduced cash from operating activities
either directly or as a non-cash adjustment to net income:

� a gain associated with the divestiture of a certain international entity in the amount of $9.3 million;

� an increase in accounts receivable of $179.5 million; and

� an increase in other current and non-current assets of $136.2 million.
     The increases in our working capital accounts were due primarily to increased overall business activity and in
anticipation of continued growth.
     During the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, the following items generated cash from operating activities
either directly or as a non-cash adjustment to net income:

� net income of $84.5 million;

� depreciation and amortization of $81.1 million; and

� an increase in accounts payables and other liabilities of $327.5 million.
     During the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, the following items reduced cash from operating activities
either directly or as a non-cash adjustment to net income:

� an increase in accounts receivable of $247.2 million;

� an increase in inventories of $326.8 million; and

� an increase in other current and non-current assets of $21.5 million.
     The increases in our working capital accounts were due primarily to increased overall business activity and in
anticipation of continued growth in the September 2006 quarter.
     Cash used in investing activities amounted to $91.8 million and $167.6 million during the three-month periods
ended June 29, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively.
     Cash used in investing activities during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 primarily related to the
following:

� net capital expenditures of $71.9 million for the purchase of equipment and for the continued expansion of
various low-cost, high-volume manufacturing facilities and industrial parks, as well as for the continued
investment in our printed circuit board operations and components business; and

� $25.4 million of miscellaneous investments primarily related to participation in our trade receivables
securitization program.
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     Cash provided by investing activities during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 primarily related to the
following:

� proceeds of $5.5 million from the divestiture of a certain international entity.
     Cash used in investing activities during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006 primarily related to the
following:

� net capital expenditures of $82.5 million for the purchase of equipment and for the continued expansion of
various low-cost, high-volume manufacturing facilities and industrial parks, as well as for the continued
investment in our printed circuit board operations and components business; and

� payments for the acquisition of businesses of $90.9 million, including $70.2 million associated with our Nortel
transaction, $15.7 million for additional shares purchased in Hughes Software Systems and $5.0 million for
various other acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired, and contingent purchase price adjustments relating
to certain historic acquisitions.

     Cash used in financing activities amounted to $2.2 million during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007, as
compared to cash provided by financing activities of $215.7 million during the three-month period ended June 30,
2006.
     Cash used in financing activities during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 primarily related to the
following:

� net repayment of bank borrowings and capital lease obligations amounting to $5.2 million.
     Cash provided by financing activities during the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 primarily related to the
following:

� $3.0 million of proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares under our employee stock plans.
     Cash provided by financing activities during the three-month period ended June 30, 2006 primarily related to the
following:

� net proceeds from bank borrowings and long-term debt of $212.7 million; and

� $3.0 million of proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares under our employee stock plans.
     Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which are based on normal ongoing operations of our business
and some of which arise from fluctuations related to global economics and markets. Our cash balances are generated
and held in many locations throughout the world. Local government regulations may restrict our ability to move cash
balances to meet cash needs under certain circumstances. We do not currently expect such regulations and restrictions
to impact our ability to pay vendors and conduct operations throughout our global organization.
     Working capital requirements and capital expenditures could continue to increase in order to support future
expansions of our operations. Future liquidity needs will also depend on fluctuations in levels of inventory, accounts
receivable and accounts payable, the timing of capital expenditures for new equipment, the extent to which we utilize
operating leases for new facilities and equipment, the extent of cash charges associated with any future restructuring
activities and levels of shipments and changes in volumes of customer orders.
     Historically, we have funded our operations from cash and cash equivalents generated from operations, proceeds
from public offerings of equity and debt securities, bank debt and lease financings. We also continuously sell a
designated pool of trade receivables to a third-party qualified special purpose entity, which in turn sells an undivided
ownership interest to a conduit, administered by an unaffiliated financial institution. In addition to this financial
institution, we participate in the securitization agreement as an investor in the conduit.
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     We believe that our existing cash balances, together with anticipated cash flows from operations and borrowings
available under our credit facilities, will be sufficient to fund our operations through at least the next twelve months.
     It is possible that future acquisitions may be significant and may require the payment of cash. For example, we
estimate that our acquisition of Solectron could require up to approximately $1.9 billion for funding the cash portion
of the merger consideration, including acquisition and financing related costs, assuming holders of 50% of Solectron�s
outstanding shares elect to receive cash. Additionally, we expect to incur significant costs during the year
commencing with the closing of the acquisition relating to restructuring and integration activities centered around
global footprint rationalization and elimination of redundant assets or unnecessary functions, including retention
bonuses, that may require material cash expenditures. We currently have a $2.0 billion credit facility, and
simultaneous with execution of the merger agreement, the Company and Citigroup agreed to the terms of a
commitment letter pursuant to which Citigroup has committed to provide Flextronics with a seven-year, senior
unsecured term loan facility of up to $2.5 billion to fund the cash requirements for the transaction, including the
repurchase or refinancing of Solectron�s debt, if required. We anticipate that we will enter into debt and equity
financings, sales of accounts receivable and lease transactions to fund other acquisitions and anticipated growth. The
sale or issuance of equity or convertible debt securities could result in dilution to our current shareholders. Further, we
may issue debt securities that have rights and privileges senior to those of holders of our ordinary shares, and the
terms of this debt could impose restrictions on our operations and could increase our debt service obligations.
Following the acquisition of Solectron, the combined company is expected to have approximately $3.3 billion to
$4.0 billion in total debt outstanding, and a higher debt to capital ratio than that of the Company on a stand-alone
basis. This increased indebtedness could limit the combined company�s flexibility as a result of debt service
requirements and restrictive covenants, potentially affect our credit ratings, and may limit the combined company�s
ability to access additional capital or execute its business strategy. Any downgrades in our credit ratings could
adversely affect our ability to borrow by resulting in more restrictive borrowing terms. We continue to assess our
capital structure, and evaluate the merits of redeploying available cash to reduce existing debt or repurchase our
ordinary shares.
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS
     Information regarding our long-term debt payments, operating lease payments, capital lease payments and other
commitments is provided in Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� of our Annual Report on our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. There have been no
material changes in our contractual obligations since March 31, 2007.
     We adopted FIN 48 in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008 and did not recognize any adjustments to our liability for
unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the implementation of FIN 48. As of April 1, 2007, we had approximately
$66.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits, substantially all of which, if recognized, would affect our tax expense.
These unrecognized tax benefits were not included in our discussion of contractual obligations as of March 31, 2007.
Our unrecognized tax benefits are subject to change over the next twelve months primarily as a result of the expiration
of certain statutes of limitations. Although the amount of these adjustments, or amount and timing of related payments
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, we are not currently aware of any material impact on our condensed
consolidated results of operations and financial condition. As of June 29, 2007, approximately $65.0 million of these
unrecognized tax benefits were classified as long-term.
     Information regarding our other financial commitments as of June 29, 2007 is provided in the Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements � Note F, �Bank Borrowings and Long-Term Debt� and Note H, �Trade Receivables
Securitization.�
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
     There were no material changes in our exposure to market risk for changes in interest and foreign currency
exchange rates for the three-month period ended June 29, 2007 as compared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
     We have a portfolio of fixed and variable rate debt. Our variable rate debt instruments create exposures for us
related to interest rate risk. A hypothetical 10% change in interest rates from those as of June 29, 2007 would not

34

Edgar Filing: FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 51



Table of Contents

have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows over the next twelve months.
     We transact business in various foreign countries and are, therefore, subject to risk of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations. We have established a foreign currency risk management policy to manage this risk. Based on our
overall currency rate exposures, including derivative financial instruments and nonfunctional currency-denominated
receivables and payables, a near-term 10% appreciation or depreciation of the U.S. dollar from its cross-functional
rates as of June 29, 2007 would not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash
flows over the next twelve months.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
     Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of June 29, 2007, the end of the quarterly fiscal period covered by this
quarterly report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as
of June 29, 2007, such disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is
(i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission�s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
     There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our first quarter of
fiscal year 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over
financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
     We are subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. We defend
ourselves vigorously against any such claims. Although the outcome of these matters is currently not determinable,
management does not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these matters will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
     In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in
Part I, �Item 1A. Risk Factors� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2007, which could
materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. The risks described in our Annual Report on Form
10-K are not the only risks facing our Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that
we currently deem to be not material also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or
operating results. In connection with our pending acquisition of Solectron, we are subject to the following risks
relating to the merger:
Flextronics and Solectron may be unable to obtain the regulatory approvals required to complete the merger;
delays or restrictions imposed by competition authorities could harm the combined company�s operations.
     Flextronics and Solectron may be unable to obtain the regulatory approvals required to complete the transaction in
the time period forecasted, if at all. In order to complete the merger, Flextronics and Solectron must notify, furnish
information to, and, where applicable, obtain clearance from competition authorities in Brazil, Canada, China, the
European Commission, Mexico, Turkey and Ukraine. Flextronics and Solectron will also notify and

35

Edgar Filing: FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 52



Table of Contents

furnish information to, on a voluntary basis, the competition authorities in Singapore. The merger is also subject to
U.S. antitrust laws and, as such, is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of
Justice, or the DOJ, and the Federal Trade Commission, or the FTC, under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, or the HSR Act. Flextronics and Solectron made their filings under the HSR
Act on June 14, 2007, and have made the necessary filings or requests with competition authorities in Brazil on
June 26, 2007, in Canada on July 6, 2007, in China on July 19, 2007, in Mexico on July 6, 2007, in Turkey on July 3,
2007 and in Ukraine on July 6, 2007. Flextronics and Solectron expect to file voluntary notification of the merger in
Singapore in early-August 2007. Pursuant to a request for early termination, the applicable waiting period under the
HSR Act was terminated on July 16, 2007. In addition, Canadian competition authorities cleared the transaction on
July 30, 2007 and Ukrainian competition authorities cleared the transaction on August 3, 2007. Reviewing agencies or
governments or private persons may challenge the merger under antitrust or similar laws at any time before or after its
completion. Any resulting delay in the completion of the merger could diminish the anticipated benefits of the merger
or result in additional transaction costs, loss of revenue or other effects associated with uncertainty about the
transaction.
     The reviewing authorities may not permit the merger at all or may impose restrictions or conditions on the merger
that may seriously harm the combined company if the merger is completed. These conditions could include a
complete or partial license, divestiture, spin-off or the holding separate of assets or businesses. Pursuant to the terms
of the merger agreement, Flextronics is not required to agree to any divestiture of any shares of capital stock or of any
business, assets or properties of Flextronics or its subsidiaries or affiliates (including Solectron or its subsidiaries) that
will have or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the benefits expected to be derived
from the merger. In addition, Flextronics may refuse to complete the merger if governmental authorities impose any
material restrictions or limitations on Flextronics, Solectron or their respective subsidiaries and their ability to conduct
their respective businesses that will have or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
benefits expected to be derived from the merger. Flextronics and Solectron also may agree to restrictions or conditions
imposed by antitrust authorities in order to obtain regulatory approval, and these restrictions or conditions could harm
the combined company�s operations.
Any delay in completing the merger may significantly reduce the benefits expected to be obtained from the merger.
     In addition to receipt of required regulatory clearances and approvals, the merger is subject to a number of other
conditions beyond the control of Flextronics and Solectron that may prevent, delay or otherwise materially adversely
affect its completion. Flextronics and Solectron cannot predict whether and when these other conditions will be
satisfied. Further, the requirements for obtaining the required clearances and approvals could delay the completion of
the merger for a significant period of time or prevent it from occurring. Any delay in completing the merger may
affect the ability of Flextronics and Solectron to achieve the synergies and other benefits they expect to achieve from
the merger within the forecasted timeframe.
Failure to complete the merger could materially and adversely affect Flextronics�s results of operations and stock
price.
     Consummation of the merger is subject to customary closing conditions, including obtaining the approval of
Solectron�s stockholders and Flextronics shareholders to proposals that are described in the joint proxy
statement/prospectus that forms part of the Company�s registration statement on Form S-4 that was filed with the SEC
on August 7, 2007. There can be no assurance that these conditions will be met or waived, that the necessary
approvals will be obtained, or that Flextronics and Solectron will be able to successfully consummate the merger as
currently contemplated under the merger agreement or at all. In addition, on June 4, 2007, a purported class action
complaint was filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Santa Clara, alleging breach of
fiduciary duty by the directors of Solectron and seeking to enjoin the merger. While this case is in the early stages,
Solectron believes that it is without merit. Any judgments, however, in respect of this or similar lawsuits that are
adverse to Flextronics and Solectron may adversely affect their ability to consummate the merger.
     If the merger is not consummated:
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� Flextronics will remain liable for significant transaction costs, including legal, accounting, financial advisory and
other costs relating to the merger;
� under specified circumstances, Flextronics may have to pay a termination fee in the amount of $100.0 million to
Solectron;
� any operational investments that Flextronics may delay due to the pending transaction would need to be made,
potentially on an accelerated timeframe, which could then prove costly and more difficult to implement; and
� the market price of Flextronics ordinary shares may decline to the extent that the current market price reflects a belief
by investors that the merger will be completed.
     Additionally, the announcement of the pending merger may lead to uncertainty for Flextronics and Solectron�s
employees and some of Flextronics and Solectron�s customers and suppliers.
     This uncertainty may mean:
� the attention of Flextronics�s management and employees may be diverted from day-to-day operations;
� Flextronics�s and Solectron�s customers and suppliers may seek to modify or terminate existing agreements, or
prospective customers may delay entering into new agreements or purchasing Solectron�s products as a result of the
announcement of the merger; and
� Flextronics�s and Solectron�s ability to attract new employees and retain existing employees may be harmed by
uncertainties associated with the merger.
     The occurrence of any of these events individually or in combination could materially and adversely affect
Flextronics�s and Solectron�s results of operations and their respective stock prices.
The termination fee contained in the merger agreement may discourage other companies from trying to acquire
Flextronics.
     Flextronics has agreed to pay a termination fee in the amount of $100.0 million to Solectron in connection with a
third-party acquisition of Flextronics under specified circumstances. This termination fee could discourage other
companies from trying to acquire Flextronics prior to consummation of the merger, even though those other
companies might be willing to offer greater value to Flextronics shareholders than Flextronics could realize through
effecting the merger.
Flextronics and Solectron are subject to contractual obligations while the merger is pending that could restrict the
manner in which they operate their respective businesses.
     The merger agreement restricts Solectron from making certain acquisitions and taking other specified actions
without the consent of Flextronics until the merger occurs. The merger agreement also restricts Flextronics from
taking certain specified actions without the consent of Solectron until the merger occurs. These restrictions may
prevent Flextronics and/or Solectron from pursuing business opportunities that may arise prior to the completion of
the merger.
The failure of Solectron to obtain certain consents related to the merger could give third parties the right to
terminate or alter existing contracts, declare a default under existing contracts, or otherwise result in liabilities of
the combined company to third parties.
     Certain agreements between Solectron and its lenders, suppliers, customers or other business partners require the
consent or approval of these other parties in connection with the merger. Solectron has agreed to use reasonable best
efforts to secure any necessary consents and approvals requested by Flextronics. However, Solectron may not be
successful in obtaining all necessary consents or approvals, or if the necessary consents are obtained, they may not
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be obtained on favorable terms. If these consents and approvals are not obtained, the failure to have obtained such
consents or approvals could give third parties the right to terminate or alter existing contracts, declare a default under
existing contracts, demand payment on outstanding obligations or result in some other liability of the combined
company to such third parties, which in each instance could have a material adverse effect on the business and
financial condition of the combined company after the merger.
Flextronics and Solectron expect to incur significant costs associated with the merger.
     Flextronics and Solectron expect to incur significant costs associated with completing the merger. Flextronics
believes that it may incur charges to operations, which are not currently reasonably estimable, in the quarter in which
the merger is completed or the following quarters, to reflect costs associated with integrating the businesses and
operations of Flextronics and Solectron. There can be no assurance that Flextronics will not incur additional charges
in subsequent quarters to reflect additional costs associated with the merger.
Flextronics may not realize the expected benefits of the merger due to difficulties integrating the businesses,
operations and product lines of Flextronics and Solectron.
     Flextronics believes that the acquisition of Solectron will result in certain benefits, including certain cost and
operating synergies and operational efficiencies. However, Flextronics�s ability to realize these anticipated benefits
will depend on a successful combination of the businesses of Flextronics and Solectron. The integration process will
be complex, time-consuming and expensive and could disrupt Flextronics�s business if not completed in a timely and
efficient manner. The combined company may not realize the expected benefits of the merger for a variety of reasons,
including but not limited to the following:
� failure to demonstrate to Flextronics�s and Solectron�s customers and suppliers that the merger will not result in
adverse changes in client service standards or business focus;
� difficulties integrating IT and financial reporting systems;
� failure to rationalize and integrate facilities quickly and effectively;
� loss of key employees during the transition and integration periods;
� revenue attrition in excess of anticipated levels; and
� failure to leverage the increased scale of the combined company quickly and effectively.
Uncertainties associated with the merger may cause a loss of employees and may otherwise materially adversely
affect the businesses of Flextronics and Solectron, and the future business and operations of the combined
company.
     The combined company�s success after the merger will depend in part upon the ability of the combined company to
retain key employees of Flextronics and Solectron. Current and prospective employees of Flextronics and Solectron
may be uncertain about their roles with the combined company following the merger, which may have a material
adverse affect on the ability of each of Flextronics and Solectron to attract and retain key management, sales,
marketing, technical and other personnel. In addition, key employees may depart because of issues relating to the
uncertainty and difficulty of integration or a desire not to remain with the combined company following the merger.
The loss of services of any key personnel or the inability to hire new personnel with the requisite skills could restrict
the ability of the combined company to develop new products or enhance existing products in a timely matter, to sell
products to customers or to manage the business of the combined company effectively.
The combined company�s increased debt may create limitations.
     Flextronics estimates that it will require up to approximately $1.9 billion to pay the cash portion of the merger
consideration, including acquisition and financing related costs, assuming holders of 50% of Solectron�s outstanding
shares elect to receive cash or approximately $700 million less if holders of 30% of Solectron�s outstanding shares
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elect to receive cash. In addition, upon consummation of the merger, the surviving corporation will be required to
offer to repurchase Solectron�s outstanding $150 million in 8.00% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2016 and
$450 million in 0.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2034 at a price of 101% and 100%, respectively, of the principal
amount of the notes outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid interest up to, but excluding, the date of repurchase.
Following the acquisition, the combined company is expected to have approximately $3.3 billion (assuming 70% of
Solectron�s outstanding shares elect to receive Flextronics ordinary shares) to $4.0 billion (assuming 50% of
Solectron�s outstanding shares elect to receive cash) in total debt outstanding, and a higher debt to capital ratio than
that of Flextronics on a stand-alone basis. This increased indebtedness could limit the combined company�s flexibility
as a result of debt service requirements and restrictive covenants, and may limit the combined company�s ability to
access additional capital or execute its business strategy.
The combined company may take substantial restructuring charges in connection with the merger, which may have
a material adverse impact on operating results.
     As part of combining the two companies, Flextronics expects to incur significant restructuring costs during the year
commencing with the closing of the acquisition. The financial results of the combined company may be adversely
affected by cash expenditures and non-cash charges incurred in connection with the restructuring and integration
activities. These costs relate to restructuring and integration activities centered around the global footprint
rationalization and elimination of redundant assets or unnecessary functions and include retention bonuses, the
amounts of which cannot be currently estimated as management of Flextronics has not yet determined all of the
restructuring activities. Certain liabilities associated with these restructuring activities will be recorded as liabilities
assumed from Solectron, with a corresponding increase in goodwill and no impact on operating results. Further,
Flextronics and Solectron have historically recognized substantial restructuring and other charges resulting from
reduced workforce and capacity at higher-cost locations, and the consolidation and closure of several manufacturing
facilities, including related impairment of certain long-lived assets. If the combined company is required to take
additional restructuring charges in the future, it could have a material adverse impact on operating results, financial
position and the cash flows of the combined company.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
     None.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
     None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
     None.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
     Not applicable.
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Exhibit
2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 4, 2007, between Flextronics International Ltd., Saturn

Merger Corp. and Solectron Corporation.*
10.01 Flextronics International USA, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Senior Management Deferred

Compensation Plan.
10.02 Award Agreement for Christopher Collier under Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan,

dated June 30, 2005.
10.03 Award Agreement for Carrie Schiff under Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan, dated

June 30, 2005.
10.04 Amendment to Indemnification Agreement between Flextronics International Ltd. and Thomas J.

Smach.
15.01 Letter in lieu of consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

39

Edgar Filing: FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 56



Table of Contents

Exhibit No. Exhibit

31.01 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.02 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

32.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

* Incorporated by
reference to the
Company�s
Current Report
on Form 8-K
filed with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission on
June 4, 2007.

** This exhibit is
furnished with
this Quarterly
Report on Form
10-Q, is not
deemed filed
with the
Securities and
Exchange
Commission,
and is not
incorporated by
reference into
any filing of
Flextronics
International
Ltd. under the
Securities Act
of 1933, as
amended, or the
Securities
Exchange Act
of 1934, as
amended,
whether made
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SIGNATURES
     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

FLEXTRONICS INTERNATIONAL LTD.
(Registrant)

            /s/ Michael M. McNamara

Michael M. McNamara
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 8, 2007

            /s/ Thomas J. Smach

Thomas J. Smach
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: August 8, 2007
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Exhibit
  2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 4, 2007, between Flextronics International Ltd., Saturn

Merger Corp. and Solectron Corporation.*
10.01 Flextronics International USA, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Senior Management Deferred

Compensation Plan.
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dated June 30, 2005.
10.03 Award Agreement for Carrie Schiff under Senior Management Deferred Compensation Plan, dated

June 30, 2005.
10.04 Amendment to Indemnification Agreement between Flextronics International Ltd. and Thomas J.

Smach.
15.01 Letter in lieu of consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
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Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.02 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.01 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

32.02 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**
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